
 

Nelson J. Sabatini 
Chairman 

 
Herbert S. Wong, Ph.D. 

Vice-Chairman 
 

Victoria W. Bayless 
 

George H. Bone, 
 M.D. 

 
John M. Colmers 

 
Stephen F. Jencks, 

 M.D., M.P.H. 
 

Jack C. Keane 
 
 

 
Donna Kinzer 

Executive Director 

Stephen Ports, Director 
Center for Engagement 

and Alignment 
 

Vacant, Director 
Center for Clinical and 
Financial Information 

 
Gerard J. Schmith, Director 

Center for Revenue and 
Regulation Compliance 

 
Sule Gerovich, Ph.D., Director 

Center for Population 
Based Methodologies 

Health Services Cost Review Commission 
4160 Patterson Avenue, Baltimore, Maryland 21215 

Phone: 410-764-2605 · Fax: 410-358-6217 
Toll Free: 1-888-287-3229 

 hscrc.maryland.gov 

State of Maryland 
Department of Health and Mental Hygiene 

 
529th MEETING OF THE HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

April 13, 2016 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
11:00 a.m. 

(The Commission will begin in public session at 11:00 a.m. for the purpose of, upon motion 
 and approval, adjourning into closed session.  The open session will resume at 2:00 p.m.) 

 
1. Update on Contract and Modeling of the All-payer Model vis-a-vis the All-Payer Model Contract – 

Administration of Model Moving into Phase II - Authority General Provisions Article, §3-103 and 
§3-104 
 

2. Update on Hospital Rate Issue (JHH) - Authority General Provisions Article, §3-305 (7) 
 

3. Discussion on Planning for Model Progression – Authority General Provisions Article, §3-103 and 
§3-104 

 
PUBLIC SESSION  

2:00 p.m. 

Review of the Minutes from the Public Meeting and Executive Session on March 9, 2016  

1. Executive Director’s Report 

2. New Model Monitoring  
 

3. Docket Status – Cases Closed 
 
2317R – Holy Cross Health   2338A – Johns Hopkins Health System 
          

4. Docket Status – Cases Open 
 

2319R – Sheppard Pratt Health System  2320N – Sheppard Pratt Health System  
2337R – LifeBridge Health, Inc.   2339R – Prince George’s Hospital Center   
2340A – Johns Hopkins Health System  2341A – University of Maryland Medical Center 
 

5. Update Factor Discussion 
 

6. Request by the Medical Assistance Program to Modify the Calculation of FY 2016 Current 
Financing Deposits 
 

7. Draft Recommendation for NSPII 
 

 



 

 
 

8. Draft Recommendation for Continued Support of the Maryland Patient Safety Center 
 

9. Legal Report 

10. Legislative Update 

11. Hearing and Meeting Schedule 

 



 

 

 

Minutes to be included into the post-meeting packet  

upon approval by the Commissioners 



 

 

Executive Director’s Report 

 

The Executive Director’s Report will be distributed during the Commission 

Meeting 



 

 

New Model Monitoring Report 

 

The Report will be distributed during the Commission Meeting 



               H.S.C.R.C's CURRENT LEGAL DOCKET STATUS (OPEN)

AS OF APRIL 5, 2016

A:   PENDING LEGAL ACTION : NONE
B:   AWAITING FURTHER COMMISSION ACTION: NONE
C:   CURRENT CASES:

Rate Order
Docket Hospital Date Decision Must be  Analyst's File
Number Name Docketed Required by: Issued by: Purpose Initials Status

2319R Sheppard Pratt Health System 11/24/2015 4/13/2016 4/22/2015 CAPITAL GS OPEN

2320N Sheppard Pratt Health System 11/24/2015 4/13/2016 4/22/2015 OBV DNP OPEN

2337R LifeBridge Health, Inc. 2/11/2016 4/13/2016 7/11/2016 Cancer Center GS OPEN

2339R Prince George's Hospital Center 3/16/2016 4/15/2016 8/15/2016 PEDS/MSG CK OPEN

2340A Johns Hopkins Health System 3/17/2016 N/A N/A ARM DNP OPEN

2341A University of Maryland Medical Center 3/30/2016 N/A N/A ARM DNP OPEN



 

IN RE: THE PARTIAL RATE   * BEFORE THE HEALTH SERVICES 

APPLICATION OF                * COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

SHEPPARD PRATT    * DOCKET:   2016 

HOSPITAL       * FOLIO:   2130 
 
BALTIMORE, MARYLAND   * PROCEEDING:  2320N  

*  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  * 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Staff Recommendation 

 April 13, 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Introduction 

     On November 24, 2015, Sheppard Pratt Hospital (“SPH”) submitted a partial rate application 

to the Commission requesting a rate for a new Behavioral Observation Service (OBV). Since May 

of 2011, SPH has operated an outpatient walk-in-clinic (Clinic) for individuals in psychiatric 

crisis. The goal of the Clinic is to provide rapid evaluation for safety and referral to appropriate 

levels of care for individuals who could be safely assessed in a clinic setting and who do not have 

medical issues other than detoxification requiring transfer to a setting with more robust medical 

management capabilities, i.e., an Emergency Department (EMG). OBV will be used to treat a 

cohort of individuals presenting at SPH’s “walk-in-crisis” clinic (Clinic) seeking inpatient 

treatment for co-occurring disorders, i.e., a psychiatric diagnosis in combination with active 

substance use disorder. SPH has been unable to determine the appropriate treatment setting for 

these individuals because they are inebriated or under the influence of drugs. SPH intends to use 

the OBV to safely detoxify these individuals, in an observation status. Once the individual is 

competent to be evaluated, a psychiatric evaluation will be completed to determine if their 

psychiatric condition warrants inpatient admission or other treatment options.  

 SPH requests that the new rate of $45.1358 be effective January 1, 2016. 

 
Staff Findings 
 
 In its review, staff found that there have never been observation units in Maryland Private 

Psychiatric hospitals. Currently, individuals with co-occurring disorder that present at SPH are 

sent to an acute hospital Emergency Department where they are detoxified and psychiatrically 

evaluated. If they have a co-occurring disorder, they are referred back to SPH for treatment.  

 According to SPH, the new OBV service will save the Maryland health system money by 

avoiding the costs of transportation to an acute hospital emergency department and what are 



typically extended emergency department visits. Savings would also be realized by reducing the 

inpatient length of stay for those individuals who require admission because they have already 

been detoxified within the OBV. In addition, SPH noted that a significant number of these 

individuals with co-occurring disorder are Medicaid recipients.   

 The Maryland Medicaid Program (MMP) commented on the application stating that it 

made programmatic sense. MMP also commented on SPH’s proposed OBV rate. Noting that 

these patients are currently sent to an acute hospital Emergency Department, and then potentially 

to an OBV stay and then sent back to SPH for a mental health evaluation, SPH contends that the 

OBV rate would appear to be less expensive than the current practice.  

 The OBV rate requested by SPH of $45.1358 is substantially lower than the OBV 

state-wide median rate of $71.9972        

Recommendation 

 After review of the application and analysis of the additional information provided by SPH 

and other sources, staff believes that the observation service for patients with co-occurring 

disorder requested by SPH will eliminate transfer to emergency departments, provide more 

efficient and effective patient care, and will save money for the Maryland health system. 

 Therefore, staff recommends that: 

1. That an OBV rate of $45.1358 per hour be approved effective April 1, 2016 for 

patients with co-occurring disorder only; and  

2. That the OBV rate not be rate realigned until a full year’s experience has been 

reported in SPH’s Annual Report.  

    

 



 

IN RE: THE PARTIAL RATE   * BEFORE THE HEALTH SERVICES 

APPLICATION OF                * COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

LIFEBRIDGE HEALTH, INC.   * DOCKET:   2016 

       * FOLIO:   2147 
 
BALTIMORE, MARYLAND   * PROCEEDING:  2337R  

*  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  *  * 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Staff Recommendation 

 April 13, 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Introduction 

 On February 1, 2016, LifeBridge Health, Inc. (the “System”) on behalf of Carroll Hospital 

Center (“Carroll”) and Sinai Hospital (“Sinai”) submitted a partial rate application to the 

Commission requesting that the rates of Carroll and Sinai be revised to reflect that the outpatient 

center at Carroll Hospital Cancer Center (“CHCC”) will operate as an off-site provider-based 

child-site of Sinai for purposes of the federal 340B program. The System requests that: 

1) $25.9 million be transferred from Carroll’s Total Patient Revenue (TPR) cap to 

Sinai’s Global Budget Revenue (GBR) cap, effective April 1, 2016; 

2) The Commission approve new unit rates for CHCC services on Sinai’s rate order, 

effective April 1, 2016; 

3) The Commission exclude the revenue for the new unit rates for CHCC services 

from rate realignment; and 

4) The Commission adjust rate order volumes in Carroll’s and Sinai’s rate orders to 

maintain a neutral impact to rate capacity as a result of the request. 

 

 Maryland 2015 legislation (Senate Bill 513) altered the definition of “hospital services” to 

include hospital outpatient services of a hospital that is designated as part of another hospital 

under the same merged asset system to make it possible for the hospital outpatient services to 

participate in the federal 340B Prescription Drug Discount program.  

 In order to avail itselve of the new legislation, the System requests that effective April 1, 

2016 outpatient services provided at CHCC located on the Carroll campus be approved to begin 

operations as part of the Sinai Oncology program. The outpatient center located at CHCC will be 

able to operate as an off-site provider-based child-site of Sinai in accordance with Medicare’s 



rules for provider-based status. As a result of this request, the child-site at CHCC will be able to 

participate in the 340B outpatient drug discount program under Sinai’s eligibility. The savings 

generated through the 340B program at the child-site of approximately $4.8 million will partially 

offset the 72% increase in drug costs at CHCC since 2012 whicht was not fully reflected in 

Carroll’s TPR. 

  The System also requested that the rates approved on Sinai’s rate order for the services 

provided at the CHCC child-site be those of CHCC for RY 2016. According to the application, 

savings of approximately $200K will be generated for Medicare patients, who are currently 

50.4% of patients at CHCC. 

 The System requests that the revision of rates and revenue between Carroll and Sinai be 

effective April 1, 2016. 

 

Staff Findings 

 In its review, staff found that the revenue requested to be transferred from Carroll to Sinai, 

less the 340B savings remaining in Carroll’s TPR revenue, appears to accurately reflect the 

annual revenue generated by CHCC. In addition, the rates and the revenue requested to be added 

to Sinai’s Approved Rate Order and GBR are those approved by the HSCRC for RY 2016 for the 

CHCC services in Carroll’s TPR. 

        

Recommendation 

 After review of the application staff recommends that System’s request be approved 

because: 1) it will enable Sinai to provide lower cost services to current oncology patients, and 2) 

it will generate future savings to the Maryland healthcare system and to additional oncology 



patients through lower drug costs at the CHCC location. 

 Staff recommends that the approval be contingent upon Sinai applying for and receiving 

provider-based status from the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services for outpatient 

services provided at the CHCC site.  

 Staff also recommends that the following rates and the associated revenue for services 

provided at the CHCC location be approved and added to Sinai’s approved rate order and GBR 

effective April 1, 2016: 

 1.  A Clinic rate of $41.70 per RVU; 

 2.  A Radiology-Therapeutic rate of $9.10 per RVU; 

 3.  An OR Clinic rate of $20.44 per minute; 

 4.  A rebundled Laboratory rate of $2.41 per RVU; and  

 5.  Drug revenue of $12,441,570.  

    

 

 



 

IN RE: THE APPLICATION FOR * BEFORE THE MARYLAND HEALTH 

ALTERNATIVE METHOD OF RATE * SERVICES COST REVIEW 

DETERMINATION * COMMISSION  

JOHNS HOPKINS HEALTH        * DOCKET:   2016        

SYSTEM                           * FOLIO:  2150  

BALTIMORE, MARYLAND * PROCEEDING: 2340A 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Staff Recommendation 

April 13, 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



I.  INTRODUCTION  

 On March 17, 2016, the Johns Hopkins Health System (“System”) filed a renewal 

application on behalf of its member hospitals Johns Hopkins Hospital and Johns Hopkins 

Bayview Medical Center (the “Hospitals”) requesting approval from the HSCRC to continue to 

participate in a global rate arrangement for cardiovascular and joint procedures with Quality 

Health Management and to add pancreas and bariatric surgery procedures. The Hospitals request 

that the Commission approve the arrangement for one year effective May 1, 2016.   

 

II. OVERVIEW OF APPLICATION 

  The contract will continue to be held and administered by Johns Hopkins HealthCare, 

LLC ("JHHC"), which is a subsidiary of the System. JHHC will continue to manage all financial 

transactions related to the global price contract including payments to the System hospitals and 

bear all risk relating to regulated services associated with the contract. 

 

III. FEE DEVELOPMENT 

 The hospital portion of the global rates was developed by calculating mean historical 

charges for patients receiving the procedures for which global rates are to be paid. The remainder 

of the global rate is comprised of physician service costs. Additional per diem payments were 

calculated for cases that exceed a specific length of stay outlier threshold.   

 

IV. IDENTIFICATION AND ASSESSMENT OF RISK 

 The Hospitals will continue to submit bills to JHHC for all contracted and covered 

services.  JHHC is responsible for billing the payer, collecting payment, disbursing payments to 

the Hospitals at their full HSCRC approved rates, and reimbursing the physicians. The System 

contends that the arrangement among JHHC, the Hospitals, and the physicians holds the 

Hospitals harmless from any shortfalls in payment from the global price contract. JHHC 

maintains it has been active in similar types of fixed fee contracts for several years, and that 

JHHC is adequately capitalized to bear the risk of potential losses.     

 

V.   ST AFF EVALUATION  

 Staff found that there was no activity under this arrangement for the last year. However, 



staff believes that the Hospitals can achieve favorable performance under this arrangement. 

  

VI.   STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 The staff recommends that the Commission approve the Hospitals' application for an 

alternative method of rate determination for cardiovascular, spine, pancreas, and bariatric surgery 

procedures for one year beginning May 1, 2016. The Hospitals must file a renewal application 

annually for continued participation.  

 Consistent with its policy paper regarding applications for alternative methods of rate 

determination, the staff recommends that this approval be contingent upon the execution of the 

standard Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") with the Hospitals for the approved contract.  

This document will formalize the understanding between the Commission and the Hospitals, and 

will include provisions for such things as payments of HSCRC-approved rates, treatment of 

losses that may be attributed to the contract, quarterly and annual reporting, and confidentiality 

of data submitted, penalties for noncompliance, project termination and/or alteration, on-going 

monitoring, and other issues specific to the proposed contract. The MOU will also stipulate that 

operating losses under the contract cannot be used to justify future requests for rate increases. 

  



IN RE: THE APPLICATION FOR * BEFORE THE MARYLAND HEALTH 

ALTERNATIVE METHOD OF RATE * SERVICES COST REVIEW 

DETERMINATION *  COMMISSION  

UNIVERSITY OF MARYLAND        * DOCKET:    2016 

MEDICAL CENTER               *  FOLIO:               2151   

BALTIMORE, MARYLAND * PROCEEDING:  2341A 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Staff Recommendation 

 April 13, 2016 

 

 

 

 

 



I.  INTRODUCTION  

University of Maryland Medical Center (the Hospital) filed an application with the 

HSCRC on March 30, 2016 for an alternative method of rate determination, pursuant to COMAR 

10.37.10.06. The Hospital requests approval from the HSCRC to continue to participate in a 

global rate arrangement for liver, kidney, lung, and blood and bone marrow transplants for a 

period of one year with Cigna Health Corporation beginning June 1, 2016. 

 

II.   OVE RVIEW OF APPLICATION 

The contract will continue be held and administered by University Physicians, Inc. 

("UPI"), which is a subsidiary of the University of Maryland Medical System. UPI will manage 

all financial transactions related to the global price contract including payments to the Hospital 

and bear all risk relating to services associated with the contract. 

 

III. FEE DEVELOPMENT 

The hospital portion of the global rates was developed by calculating historical charges 

for patients receiving the procedures for which global rates are to be paid. The remainder of the 

global rate is comprised of physician service costs. Additional per diem payments were 

calculated for cases that exceed a specific length of stay outlier threshold.  

  

IV. IDENTIFICATION AND ASSESSMENT OF RISK 

The Hospital will continue submit bills to UPI for all contracted and covered services. 

UPI is responsible for billing the payer, collecting payments, disbursing payments to the Hospital 

at its full HSCRC approved rates, and reimbursing the physicians. The Hospital contends that the 

arrangement between UPI and the Hospital holds the Hospital harmless from any shortfalls in 

payment from the global price contract. 

     

V.     STAFF EVALUATION  

The staff found that the Hospital’s experience under this arrangement for the previous 

year was favorable.  



VI.   STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

The staff recommends that the Commission approve the Hospital’s application for an 

alternative method of rate determination for liver, kidney, lung, and blood and bone marrow 

transplant services, for a one year period commencing June 1, 2016. The Hospital will need to 

file a renewal application to be considered for continued participation. 

Consistent with its policy paper regarding applications for alternative methods of rate 

determination, the staff recommends that this approval be contingent upon the execution of the 

standard Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") with the Hospital for the approved contract.  

This document would formalize the understanding between the Commission and the Hospital, 

and would include provisions for such things as payments of HSCRC-approved rates, treatment 

of losses that may be attributed to the contract, quarterly and annual reporting, confidentiality of 

data submitted, penalties for noncompliance, project termination and/or alteration, on-going 

monitoring, and other issues specific to the proposed contract.  The MOU will also stipulate that 

operating losses under the contract cannot be used to justify future requests for rate increases. 

 



 
Update Factor Discussion 

 
 
 
 
 
 

A presentation will be distributed at the Commission meeting 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Staff Recommendation 

 
      Request by the Medical Assistance Program to Modify the Calculation 

of Current Financing Deposits for CY 2016 
 

April 13, 2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Introduction 
 
The Medical Assistance Program (MAP) has been providing working capital advance monies 
(current financing) to hospitals for many years. As a result, MAP receives the prompt pay 
discount as per COMAR 10.37.10.26(B). MAP is unique among third-party payers in that it is a 
governmentally funded program that covers qualified poor residents of Maryland. As such, it 
deals, to a large extent, with retroactive coverage. Recognizing the uniqueness of MAP, the 
Commission allowed MAP to negotiate a special formula with the hospital industry to calculate 
its fair share of current financing monies. The Commission approved this alternative method of 
calculating current financing at its February 1, 1995 public meeting. Currently, MAP has 
approximately $95 million in current financing on deposit with Maryland hospitals. 
 
As a result of the state budget crisis beginning in 2009, MAP requested, and the Commission 
approved exceptions to MAP’s approved alternative method of current financing calculation.  
MAP also proposed that changes be made in its current financing formula when its new claims 
processing system, which was projected to achieve a dramatic reduction in hospital receivables, 
was implemented.  
   
Status of MAP’s New Claims Processing System 
 
MAP reported that its new claims processing system, Medicaid Enterprise Restructuring Project, 
has been terminated, and that there is currently no timeline for implementing a new claims 
processing system.   
 
MAP’s Current Request 
 
MAP has requested a continuation of the modified current financing formula be used for CY 
2016, i.e., that the CY 2015 current financing deposits at each hospital be increased by the 
HSCRC’s final update factor (2.61%). In addition, MAP requested that a workgroup be 
assembled to develop a revised methodology for calculating the current financing deposit. 
       
Staff Recommendation 
 
Since MAP’s budget crisis appears to be subsiding, staff believes that MAP must again begin 
providing current financing working capital deposits that are appropriate for its population.  
 
Therefore, staff recommends that the Commission approve MAP’s request, but that the approval 
be contingent on MAP agreeing that the CY 2017 current financing deposits be calculated 
utilizing either a new permanent revised methodology developed by the work group, its currently 
approved alternative methodology, or the methodology utilized by all other third party payers. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Nurse Support Program II

Recommendations for the 
FY 2017 NSP II Competitive Institutional Grants



2

FY 2016 - FY 2020: Updates
 NSP II Statute in Education Article, Section 11-405, 

revised to remove “bedside” as a descriptor. 

 SB 208 voted favorable in both the House and Senate. 

 Improved metrics and program evaluation process

 Developing enhancements to nursesupport.org website 
to provide automated data collection, management, 
analysis and reporting.



3

FY 2017 Grant Recommendations

 Total Funding Recommended- $17.5 mil
 4  Planning Grants
 12  Implementation Grants 
 3  Continuation Grants

 Broad geographic representation 
 Funding recommended for proposals at 11 higher 

education institutions
 4 community colleges
 4 private
 2 public Universities
 1 HBCU



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NURSE SUPPORT PROGRAM II 

FY 2017 COMPETITIVE INSTITUTIONAL GRANTS 

 

Health Services Cost Review Commission 

4160 Patterson Avenue, Baltimore, MD  21215 

DRAFT 

April 13, 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This is a draft recommendation for Commission consideration at the April 13, 2016 Public Commission 
Meeting. Please submit comments on this draft to the Commission by Monday May 2nd, 2016, via hard 
copy mail or email to Oscar.Ibarra@maryland.gov. 



Draft Recommendation for NSP II FY 2017 Competitive Institutional Grants  

 

Introduction 

 This report presents the recommendations of the Nurse Support Program II (NSP 

II) Competitive Institutional Grant Review Panel for FY 2017.  The FY 2017 recommendations 

are in alignment with the NSP II goals and objectives as well as new recommendations at the 

national level.  This report and recommendations are submitted by the Maryland Higher 

Education Commission (MHEC) and Health Services Cost Review Commission (HSCRC).  

Background 

 Over the last 30 years, the Health Services Cost Review Commission has funded 

programs to address the cyclical nursing workforce shortages. In July 2001, the HSCRC 

implemented the hospital based NSP I program to address the nursing shortage impacting 

Maryland hospitals. On May 4, 2005, the HSCRC responded to the faculty shortage and limited 

nursing educational capacity underlying the nursing shortage with the NSP II.  They approved an 

increase of 0.1% of regulated gross hospital revenue for use in expanding the pool of nurses in 

the state by increasing the capacity of nursing programs in Maryland through institutional and 

nursing faculty interventions. The Maryland Higher Education Commission (MHEC), the 

coordinating board for all Maryland institutions of higher education, was selected by the HSCRC 

to administer the NSP II programs. 

The state of Maryland has made steady gains and much progress towards alleviating the 

state’s nursing shortage.  However, Maryland remains the only state in the geographic region and 

one of only sixteen (16) states in the nation projected to have a shortage of nurses in 2025 

(HRSA, 2014).  At the conclusion of the NSP II FY 2006 to FY 2015 program evaluation in 



2 
 

2015, the HSCRC renewed the funding for five additional years at 0.1% of hospital regulated 

gross patient revenue for FY 2016 through FY 2020.   

Maryland Progress in Nursing Education 

 Maryland has seen a 32% increase in entry level (BSN) and baccalaureate completion 

(RN-BSN) graduates from 1,105 BSN graduates in 2010 to 1,636 BSN graduates in 2015. 

 The Associate Degree in Nursing (ADN) graduates increased 12% from 1,443 in 2010 to 

1,625 in 2015.   

 The Master’s in Nursing (MSN) graduates increased from 441 in 2010 to 629 in 2015.   

 The Nursing Practice and Research Doctoral (DNP and PhD) graduates increased from 

64 in 2010 to 71 in 2015.  

FY 2016- 2020 Updates 

NSPII Program Improvements 

The NSP II Statute in Education Article, Section 11-405 was reviewed with 

recommendations presented during the 2016 Maryland Legislative Session for the deletion of 

“bedside” as a descriptor for nurses.  Instead of focusing on “bedside” nurses, SB 108 would 

allow the NSP II program to improve the pipeline of nurses with the skills necessary to keep 

pace with the rapidly changing provision of health care services. Steve Ports, Director, Center for 

Engagement and Alignment at the HSCRC testified as co-sponsor with Priscilla Moore, NSP II 

Grants Specialist at MHEC.  SB 108 was voted favorable by the Maryland Senate voted on 

2/3/16 and by the House on 3/15/16. 

The most recent HSCRC recommendations to NSP II staff included focusing on better 

data management to inform future policy and programmatic decisions.  In response to this 



3 
 

recommendation, enhancements to the existing nursesupport.org website are currently being 

developed to provide high volume data submission, management, analysis, and report 

preparation for future outcome evaluations. This project is on schedule to be completed in time 

for FY 2016- FY 2020 reporting.   

New NSP II Programs: Academic and Practice Partnerships 

The NSP II’s newest programs, Nurse Leadership Consortium and Clinical Simulation 

Resource Consortium, align with the American Association of Colleges of Nursing-Manatt 

Report (2016); Advancing Health Care Transformation:  A New Era for Academic Nursing.  

These new programs were created to provide opportunities across settings for academic nurse 

faculty and clinical practice nurses to work more closely together. Both programs have dedicated 

Advisory Councils with representation from hospitals and academia to provide oversight and 

guidance.  During the first year, there were 72 registered nurse participants in the NSP II 

Leadership Consortium and Clinical Simulation Resource Consortium. These participants were 

nominated by health systems at nine (9) hospitals and twenty (20) nursing programs. These 

programs are open to all hospitals, health systems and schools of nursing through an annual 

nomination process. 

FY 2017 Competitive Grant Process and Recommendations 

In response to the FY 2017 RFA, the NSP II Competitive Institutional Grant Review 

Panel received twenty-four (24) new proposals and three (3) continuation recommendations.  

The seven-member review panel, comprised of hospital nursing educators, former NSP I and 

NSP II grant project directors, retired nurse educators, licensure and policy leaders along with 

MHEC and HSCRC staff, reviewed all proposals.  All new proposals received by the deadline 



4 
 

were scored by the panel according to the rubric in the FY 2017 RFA.  After the panel convened 

for full discussions, a consensus developed around the most highly recommended proposals. As 

a result, the committee agreed to recommend funding for sixteen (16) of the twenty-four (24) 

proposals.  These funded proposals included planning grants of one (1) year to full 

implementation grants of five (5) years and three (3) continuation grants totaling $17.5 mil.  See 

Table 1 for a listing of the recommended grant awardees for FY 2017. 

Table 1: Final Recommendations for funding for FY 2017 Competitive Institutional Grants  

Grant # Institution Grant Title 
Proposed 
Funding 

17-102 CCBC Expanded Pathways to BSN $1,085,971
17-104 Chesapeake College Academic Progressions in Nursing $913,399
17-106 Hood College  Baccalaureate Nursing at Hood College $1,351,867
17-107 John Hopkins Univ. Nurse Faculty for the Future $1,023,932
17-108 Morgan State Univ. SAM II $784,438
17-110 Notre Dame RN to BSN $1,716,608
17-112 Salisbury University BS Bound $74,299
17-114 Stevenson University Progress through Partnerships $1,363,848
17-115 University of Maryland Care Coordination Specialty $255,198
17-116 University of Maryland Care Coordination & Case Management  $113,701
17-117 University of Maryland Collaborative NP Clinical Training $945,866
17-119 University of Maryland Developing Educators to Teach Online $80,970
17-120 University of Maryland Faculty Mentorship Program II  $350,031
17-121 University of Maryland FNP Expansion to Shady Grove $1,586,781
17-123 University of Maryland Project RUSH- PhD Program $595,210
17-124 University of Maryland Psychiatric MH FNP $168,924
17-125 John Hopkins Univ. Inter-professional Education $1,692,335
17-126 University of Maryland RN- BSN or MSN Clinical Faculty $3,120,506
17-127 Montgomery College Military to Associate Degree $341,594
    
  TOTAL $17, 565,478
   

The funded proposals were representative of the commitment of NSP II to nursing degree 

completions, seamless academic pathways, academic practice partnerships, increasing diversity, 

and statewide resources. The most highly recommended proposals supported nursing 

undergraduate degree completions at Morgan State University, Associate to Bachelor degrees at 



5 
 

The Community College of Baltimore County, RN-BSN completion programs at Notre Dame of 

Maryland University and Stevenson University, along with two Care Coordination and Case 

Management planning grants at the University of Maryland. The final recommended proposals 

align with the NSP II goals and support nursing education across the Maryland. 

The HSCRC and MHEC staff members are recommending that the NSP II Competitive 

Institutional Grant Review Panel recommendations are approved for FY 2017 funding as 

presented, to become effective on July 1, 2016. 

References 

American Association of Colleges of Nursing- Manatt (2016).  Advancing Health Care 
Transformation:  A New Era for Academic Nursing. Accessed on March 30, 2016 at  
http://www.aacn.nche.edu/AACN-Manatt-Report.pdf   

Institute of Medicine. (2010). The Future of Nursing: leading change advancing health. 
Washington, DC: The National Academies Press. 
 
Institute of Medicine. (2015). Assessing Progress on the Institute of Medicine Report: The 
Future of Nursing. Washington, DC: The National Academies Press. 
 
Nurse Support Program II (NSP II) Outcomes Evaluation FY 2006 – FY 2015, Health Services 
Cost Review Commission, January 14, 2015 Minutes. 
http://www.hscrc.state.md.us/documents/commission-meeting/2015/01-14/HSCRC-Post-
Commission-Meeting-2015-01-15.pdf  
 
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Health Resources and Services Administration, 
National Center for Health Workforce Analysis. The Future of the Nursing Workforce: 
National- and State-Level Projections, 2012-2025. Rockville, Maryland, 2014. 
http://bhw.hrsa.gov/healthworkforce/supplydemand/nursing/workforceprojections/nursingproject 
ions.pdf  

 

 



Draft Recommendations on Continued Financial Support of the 
Maryland Patient Safety Center for FY 2017 

 
 

 
 

Draft Recommendations on Continued 
Financial Support for the Maryland Patient 

Safety Center for FY 2017 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

April 6, 2016 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Health Services Cost Review Commission 
4160 Patterson Avenue 
Baltimore, MD 21215 

 
 
 
 
 
 
This document contains the draft staff recommendations for providing continued 
financial support of the Maryland Patient Safety Center.  Comments on this draft may be 
submitted via hard copy or email to Dianne Feeney at Dianne.feeney@maryland.gov by 
COB April 29, 2016.  



Draft Recommendations on Continued Financial Support of the  
Maryland Patient Safety Center for FY 2017 

 

1 
 

 
Introduction 
 
In 2004, the HSCRC adopted recommendations that made it a partner in the initiation of 
the Maryland Patient Safety Center (MPSC) by providing seed funding through hospital 
rates.  The initial recommendations provided funding to cover 50% of the reasonable 
budgeted costs of the Center.  The Commission works collaboratively on MPSC projects 
as appropriate, and receives a briefing and documentation annually on the progress of the 
MPSC in meeting its goals as well as an estimate of expected expenditures and revenues 
for the upcoming fiscal year.  Based on staff project collaboration experience, and on the 
annual information provided by MPSC, staff evaluates the reasonableness of the budget 
items presented and makes continued financial support recommendations to the 
Commission.   

 
Over the past 12 years, the rates of eight Maryland hospitals were increased by the 
following amounts in total, and funds have been transferred on a biannual basis (by 
October 31 and March 31 of each year): 

 
 FY 2005 - $  762,500 
 FY 2006 - $  963,100  
 FY 2007 - $1,134,980 
 FY 2008 - $1,134,110 
 FY 2009 - $1,927,927 
 FY 2010 - $1,636,325 
 FY 2011 - $1,544,594 
 FY 2012 - $1,314,433 
 FY 2013 - $1,225,637 
 FY 2014 - $1,200,000 
 FY 2015 - $1,080,000 
 FY 2016 - $972,000 

 
In March 2016, the HSCRC received the attached request for continued financial support 
of the MPSC through hospital rates in FY 2017 (Appendix I).  The MPSC is requesting a 
total of $874,800 in funding support from HSCRC, a decrease of 10% from the previous 
year.    
 
 
Background 
 
The 2001 General Assembly passed the “Patients’ Safety Act of 2001,” charging the 
Maryland Health Care Commission (MHCC), in consultation with the Department of 
Health and Mental Hygiene (DHMH), with studying the feasibility of developing a 
system for reducing the number of preventable adverse medical events in Maryland 
including, a system of reporting such incidences.  The MHCC subsequently 



Draft Recommendations on Continued Financial Support of the  
Maryland Patient Safety Center for FY 2017 

 

2 
 

recommended the establishment of a Maryland Patient Safety Center (MPSC or Center) 
as one approach to improving patient safety in Maryland.   
 
In 2003, the General Assembly endorsed this concept by including a provision in 
legislation to allow the MPSC to have medical review committee status, thereby making 
the proceedings, records, and files of the MPSC confidential and not discoverable or 
admissible as evidence in any civil action.   
 
The MHCC selected the Maryland Hospital Association (MHA) and the Delmarva 
Foundation for Medical Care (Delmarva or DFMC) through the State of Maryland’s 
Request for Proposals (RFP) procurement process to establish and begin operating the 
MPSC in 2004, with an agreement that the two organizations would collaborate in their 
efforts. MHA and Delmarva jointly operated the Center from 2004 to 2009.  The Center 
was then reorganized as an entity independent from MHA and DFMC, and re-designated 
by MHCC as the state’s patient safety center starting in 2010 for two additional five-year 
periods; the Center’s current designation extends through December 2019.  

 
Assessment 
 
Strategic Priorities and Partnerships 
 
MPSC’s vision is to be a center of patient safety innovation, convening providers of care 
to accelerate understanding of, and implement evidence–based solutions for, 
preventing avoidable harm. Its stated mission is make healthcare in Maryland the safest 
in the nation 
 
The Center’s goals are to: 

 Eliminate preventable harm for every patient, with every touch, every time 
 Develop a shared culture of safety among fpatient care providers 
 Be a model for safety innovation in other states 

 
To accomplish its vision, mission and goals, the MPSC has established and continues to 
build new strategic partnerships with an array of key private and public organizations.  
The organizations represent a broad array of interests and expertise including 
policymakers, providers of care across the continuum of, healthcare quality/safety, and 
healthcare learning and education.  
 
Appendix I more fully details the Center’s priorities and partnerships. 
 
Maryland Patient Safety Center Activities, Accomplishments, and Outcomes  
 
The highlights of the Center’s key accomplishments for FY 2016, more fully outlined in 
Appendix I, include: 
 

• Member hospitals totaled 43  



Draft Recommendations on Continued Financial Support of the  
Maryland Patient Safety Center for FY 2017 

 

3 
 

• Began marketing of Caring for the Caregiver with strong interest from hospitals in 
Maryland, NY, SC, and CA. 

• Mid-Atlantic PSO members include 26 facilities 
• Commenced First Time Cesarean-Section initiative 
• Commenced Neonatal Abstinence Syndrome initiative 
• Recruited 16 hospitals, 5 LTC and 5 ASC’s for Clean Collaborative initiative-  

Recruitment continues.  
• Sepsis Collaborative improvements to date show Cohort I has decreased sepsis 

mortality in by 11.0% and Cohort II by 11.1% 
• Partnered with VHQC in a LTC Sepsis collaborative (32 MD LTCs) 
• Safe from Falls- LTC collaborative completed and decreased falls with injury in 

participating long term care facilities by 30.56%  
 

For FY 17, the Center is conducting the activities outlined below (also see Appendix I). 
• Perinatal/Neonatal Quality Collaborative 

 Reduce first time C-sections in singleton, vertex, nulliparous women (readmissions, 
LOS)   
 Standardizing care and treatment of neonatal abstinence syndrome (readmissions, 
LOS, transfers to higher levels of care) 

• Sepsis Prevention (LTC)  
 Partnering with VHQC to reduce mortality in the post acute setting (readmissions, 
LOS) 

• Sepsis Mortality (acute care) 
 Reduce mortality due to sepsis through early identification and rapid treatment (LOS, 
mortality) 

• Clean Collaborative 
 Reduce incidence of HAI’s through improved practices related to surface 
contamination (PPC’s, LOS) 

• Errors in Diagnosis 
 Convene study group to analyze IOM September 2015 recommendations for adoption 
and development of statewide initiative (LOS, readmissions, utilization) 

• Patient Family Centered Care Bundle 
 Convene study group to institute relevant patient family centered care related 
activities (readmissions, patient satisfaction) 

• Medication Reconciliation 
 Convene study group to develop applicable initiative(s) (readmissions, LOS) 
 
 
FY 2017 Projected Budget 
 
MPSC continued its efforts to work with its partners to secure program-specific funding 
for FY 2017, and estimates the amounts they will secure for FY 2017 in the proposed 
budget outlined in Figure 1 below.



Draft Recommendations on Continued Financial Support of the  
Maryland Patient Safety Center for FY 2017 

 

4 

Figure 1. Proposed Revenue and Expenses 
      FY 2016     FY 2017
REVENUE    Budget    Budget

 
Cash Contributions from 
MHA/Delmarva           100,000               100,000  
 Cash Contributions from Hospitals             75,000                 30,000  
 Cash Contributions for Long-term Care             25,000                 25,000  
 HSCRC Funding           972,000               874,800  
 Membership Dues           275,000               350,000  
 Education Session Revenue             22,000                 14,000  

 
Conference Registrations-Annual 
MedSafe Conference               3,000                  2,000  

 
Conference Registrations-Annual 
Patient Safety Conference           130,000                 75,000  
 Sponsorships           130,000               140,000  
 Program Sales             60,000                 60,000  
 Patient Safety Certification Revenue                    -                   85,000  
 DHMH Grant           200,000               200,000  
 Other Grants/Contributions           100,000                 50,000  
 Total Revenue        2,092,000           2,005,800 
          
  FY 2016 FY 2016 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2017 FY 2017
EXPENSES MPSC Consultants Total MPSC Consultants Total

 Administration      551,250         551,250  
       
581,750             581,750  

 
Outpatient Dialysis (previously 
committed)              -                     -                   -                     -    
 Programs                    -                         -    
   Education Sessions           78,000          78,000            69,000              69,000  
   Annual Patient Safety Conference         360,000        360,000          370,500            370,500  



Draft Recommendations on Continued Financial Support of the  
Maryland Patient Safety Center for FY 2017 

 

5 

   MEDSAFE Conference           55,000          55,000            33,250              33,250  

   Caring for HC        57,000         60,000        117,000  
        
93,400          50,000            143,400  

   Patient/Family Centered Care              -                  -                    -                   -                -                      -    

   Safety Initiatives-Perinatal/Neonatal      221,300               -           221,300  
       
206,850                -              206,850  

   Safety Initiatives-Hand Hygiene        52,050         15,000          67,050                 -                -                      -    
   Safety Initiatives-Safe from Falls        24,600             500          25,100                 -                -                      -    

 
  Safety Initiatives-Adverse Event 
Reporting        15,600         85,000        100,600  

        
25,100          40,000              65,100  

   Patient Safety Certification      117,400         52,000        169,400  
       
132,300          15,000            147,300  

   Sepsis        71,500         87,900        159,400  
        
38,200          47,150              85,350  

   Clean Environment        81,600       105,000        186,600  
        
61,300          97,900            159,200  

   Patient Family Bundle      
        
22,700                -                22,700  

   Med Rec      
        
19,500                -                19,500  

   Surgical      
        
19,500                -                19,500  

   Diagnosis Errors      
        
19,500                -                19,500  

            

 Total Expenses   1,192,300       898,400     2,090,700 
    
1,220,100       722,800        1,942,900 

            
 Net Income (Loss)               1,300                62,900 



Draft Recommendations on Continued Financial Support of the  
Maryland Patient Safety Center for FY 2017 

 

6 

 
MPSC Return on Investment  
 
As was noted in the last several Commission recommendations, the All-Payer System has 
provides funding support for the Maryland Patient Safety Center with the expectation that 
there would be both short-term and long-term reductions in Maryland healthcare costs – 
particularly related to such outcomes as reduced mortality rates, lengths of stays, patient 
acuity, and malpractice insurance costs. However, these results continue to be difficult to 
quantify and the Center has been able to provide limited evidence that the programs have 
resulted in cost savings, and only to the extent that these savings relate to individual 
programs and for limited periods of time.  

 
Based on the data that is generated and reported by MPSC to HSCRC (e.g., 11% 
reduction in sepsis mortality in cohorts I and II), staff continues to believe there are 
indications that the programs of the MPSC are well conceived.  The sepsis early 
identification and mortality reduction program aligns with the Commission’s goals as it 
aspires to reduce infection complications and mortality.  MPSC has continued to work to 
maintain sources of revenue, e.g., in conference registration fees and in membership 
dues, demonstrating perceived value of the Center’s provider customer base.   
 
 
Recommendations 

 
In light of the information presented above, staff provides the following draft 
recommendations on the MPSC funding support policy: 
 
1. HSCRC provide funding support for the MPSC in FY 2017 through an increase in 

hospital rates in the amount of $874,800 a $97,200 (10%) reduction from FY 2016; 
2. The MPSC continue to aggressively pursue other sources of revenue, including from 

other provider groups that benefit from the programs of the Center, to help support 
the Center into the future, and maintain reasonable cash reserves; 

3. Going forward, HSCRC continue to decrease the dollar amount of support by a 
minimum of 10% per year, or a greater amount contingent upon:  

a. how well the MPSC initiatives fit into and line up with a broader 
statewide plan and activities for patient safety; and 

b. whether new MPSC revenues should offset HSCRC funding support. 



Appendix I: MPSC Report to HSCRC on FY 2015 Results and  
FY 2016 Program Plan and Budget Request 

i 
 



Appendix I: MPSC Report to HSCRC on FY 2015 Results and  
FY 2016 Program Plan and Budget Request 

ii 
 



Appendix I: MPSC Report to HSCRC on FY 2015 Results and  
FY 2016 Program Plan and Budget Request 

iii 
 



Appendix I: MPSC Report to HSCRC on FY 2015 Results and  
FY 2016 Program Plan and Budget Request 

iv 
 



Appendix I: MPSC Report to HSCRC on FY 2015 Results and  
FY 2016 Program Plan and Budget Request 

v 
 



Appendix I: MPSC Report to HSCRC on FY 2015 Results and  
FY 2016 Program Plan and Budget Request 

vi 
 



Appendix I: MPSC Report to HSCRC on FY 2015 Results and  
FY 2016 Program Plan and Budget Request 

vii 
 



Appendix I: MPSC Report to HSCRC on FY 2015 Results and  
FY 2016 Program Plan and Budget Request 

viii 
 



Appendix I: MPSC Report to HSCRC on FY 2015 Results and  
FY 2016 Program Plan and Budget Request 

ix 
 



Appendix I: MPSC Report to HSCRC on FY 2015 Results and  
FY 2016 Program Plan and Budget Request 

x 
 



Appendix I: MPSC Report to HSCRC on FY 2015 Results and  
FY 2016 Program Plan and Budget Request 

xi 

 



Appendix I: MPSC Report to HSCRC on FY 2015 Results and  
FY 2016 Program Plan and Budget Request 

xii 

 



Appendix I: MPSC Report to HSCRC on FY 2015 Results and  
FY 2016 Program Plan and Budget Request 

xiii 
 



Appendix I: MPSC Report to HSCRC on FY 2015 Results and  
FY 2016 Program Plan and Budget Request 

xiv 
 



Appendix I: MPSC Report to HSCRC on FY 2015 Results and  
FY 2016 Program Plan and Budget Request 

xv 
 



Appendix I: MPSC Report to HSCRC on FY 2015 Results and  
FY 2016 Program Plan and Budget Request 

xvi 
 



Appendix I: MPSC Report to HSCRC on FY 2015 Results and  
FY 2016 Program Plan and Budget Request 

xvii 

 



























Legislative Update 

 

 

The Legislative Update will be presented at the Commission Meeting 



 

Nelson J. Sabatini 
Chairman 

 
Herbert S. Wong, Ph.D. 

Vice-Chairman 
 

Victoria W. Bayless 
 

George H. Bone, 
 M.D. 

 
John M. Colmers 

 
Stephen F. Jencks, 

 M.D., M.P.H. 
 

Jack C. Keane 
 
 

 
Donna Kinzer 

Executive Director 

Stephen Ports, Director 
Center for Engagement 

and Alignment 
 

Vacant, Director 
Center for Clinical and 
Financial Information 

 
Gerard J. Schmith, Director 

Center for Revenue and 
Regulation Compliance 

 
Sule Gerovich, Ph.D., Director 

Center for Population 
Based Methodologies 

Health Services Cost Review Commission 
4160 Patterson Avenue, Baltimore, Maryland 21215 

Phone: 410-764-2605 · Fax: 410-358-6217 
Toll Free: 1-888-287-3229 

 hscrc.maryland.gov 

State of Maryland 
Department of Health and Mental Hygiene 

 
TO:   Commissioners 
 
FROM:  HSCRC Staff 
 
DATE:  April 13, 2016 
 
RE:   Hearing and Meeting Schedule 
 

 
May 11, 2016  To be determined - 4160 Patterson Avenue 

HSCRC/MHCC Conference Room 
 
June 8, 2016  To be determined - 4160 Patterson Avenue 

HSCRC/MHCC Conference Room 
 
 
 
Please note that Commissioner’s binders will be available in the Commission’s office at 11:45 
a.m. 
 
The Agenda for the Executive and Public Sessions will be available for your review on the 
Thursday before the Commission meeting on the Commission’s website at 
http://www.hscrc.maryland.gov/commission-meetings-2016.cfm 
 
Post-meeting documents will be available on the Commission’s website following the 
Commission meeting. 

 




